
Lighthouses have been a constant guide and a warning 
of danger to seafarers, in all weathers, over the centuries.  

Trinity House is the general lighthouse 
authority for England, Wales, the 
Channel Islands and Gibraltar.   
 
It was created on 20

th
 May 1514 when 

Henry VIII granted a royal charter 
authorising ‘our true and faithful 
subjects, Shipmen and Mariners of this 
our Realm of England’ to establish a 
guild with general powers to regulate 
pilotage.  In 1566 an Act of Parliament 
gave Trinity House powers to set up ‘so 
many beacons, marks and signs for the 
sea… whereby the dangers may be 
avoided and escaped and the ships the 

better come unto their ports without peril’. 
 
The first lighthouse to be built by Trinity House was Lowestoft in 1609.  However there was a 
lengthy delay before the corporation became responsible for the management of all lighthouses 
as it was common practice for the crown to issue patents and grants to private individuals.  In 
1836 Trinity House was given compulsory powers to maintain the lights itself at a cost of 
£1,200,000.   
 
One of these maintained by Trinity House is St Bees Lighthouse.  The cliffs around St Bees 
Head were a danger to the coastal vessels trading between the ports of Wales and the Solway 
Firth, with the busy ports of Whitehaven, Workington and Maryport. 
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View of 
St Bees 
light-
house in 
the past 
(refs.  
PH 

Coastline in 1720s, redrawn from a map in the 
Lowther family archive   (ref.  YDX 302/32) 
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Cumberland Pacquet      21st January 1822 

A patent was obtained for the building of a lighthouse on St Bees Head in 1718 by Trinity House.   
 
This was leased to Thomas Lutwidge for 99 years at £20 per year.  He undertook to build the 
tower and maintain the light at his own expense.  Dues were levied at the neighbouring ports of 
Whitehaven, Maryport and Workington to 
provide him with an income. 
 
He built a strong round tower of 9 metres 
high and 5 metres in diameter of local 
sandstone. On top of this was a large 
metal grate into which the keepers poured 

coal.   
 

St Bees Lighthouse 
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Counterpart of lease dated 10th October 1740 from the Governors of St Bees School 
to Joseph Burrow of Whitehaven of the lighthouse at St Bees Head, with adjoining 
parcels of land,  at 1shilling annual rent.        (ref. YDS 60/74/7) 

However there were often complaints from ship-owners 
because the light was variable in intensity and often produced 
a thick smoke depending on wind conditions. 
 
These working conditions came with their dangers, not just to 
seamen, and in 1822 the tower, which was the last coal 

burning lighthouse in 
Britain, was destroyed by 
fire killing a family of 6.   
Cumberland Pacquet 
 

28th January 1822 

Many lighthouses keepers and their families made St Bees 
their home across the centuries, as detailed in the census. 

Here we meet the residents in 1861 and 
1911:  above was George Gould, the 47 
year old lighthouse keeper from the Isle of 
Wight, with his wife Mary from Wales, and 
children George Ray and Sarah,  both born 
in St Bees.  By 1911, Alfred Grigg was 
keeper, living with his wife and nephew. 
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Weather readings from the 
lighthouse, used as evidence in 
a court case about a salvage at 
sea (ref. BH/1/134) 

Cumberland Pacquet 
16

th
 May 1865 

St Bees Lighthouse 

A pair of parabola reflectors powered by oil on a 27ft high 
building replaced the original lighthouse. This in turn was 
replaced by a higher round tower in 1865 with two new 
dwelling houses for the keepers.  In recent times, like many 
others, St Bees lighthouse became automated with the last 
keeper leaving in 1986.  
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St Bees lighthouse in more modern times, on plans dating from 1989 (above) 
and cross section of cliff showing proposed site of fog signal in 1960s (ref. YGLA/1/1) 
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Rev Joshua Tyson of Distington offered the following prayer as the 
key-stone to the new lighthouse was laid: 
 

May the light which shall henceforth guide the benighted 
mariners to the haven where they would be, hailed by 
thousands and tens of thousands of all people, nations 
and languages, as the  emblem  - feeble and faint indeed, 
but still the emblem of that glorious light, which yet shineth 
in darkness to direct the steps of those who wander on in 
heedless or hopeless course, towards Thee, the only 
source of spiritual light and safety.    Amen 



The lighthouse on the old quay was probably 
built as a tidal light sometime between 1710 
and 1727.  The sundial on the side dates 
from 1730. 
 
By 1785 an oil burning reflector had been 
fitted to the lighthouse, which was upgraded 
to gas by 1864.  Later in 1903 a window was 
cut out 7 feet below the light so that a red 
light could be shown when it was necessary 
to block entrance during the night.  During 
the day red flags were flown from the flagstaff 
above the lighthouse to prohibit entrance by 
day.   
 
A light was established on a mast at the end 
of the old quay in 1902 and the light from the 
old lighthouse was later discontinued. 

Views of Whitehaven 
 
(refs. DH 359/37 (left),  
Lighthouses by Hague 
and Christie (1975) 
(right)  and  
PH/1579/6 (below) 
 

Whitehaven Harbour 
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